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____ public - Federal structure
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Name of related multiple property listing
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Residential Architecture of Eugene, Ore. 1850-1950

Number of Resources within Property
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Contributing ~ Noncontributing
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structures
objects

1 1 Total

Number of contributing resources previously
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6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
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DOMESTIC: single dwelling

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC: multiple dwelling

7. Description

Architectural Classification
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Classical Revival

Narrative Description

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)

foundation. CONCRETE, WOOD
walls: _WOOD
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Other:
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D

of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark “x” in all the boxes that apply)

Property is:

_____A

owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes

removed from its original location

a birthplace or grave
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a reconstructed building, object, or structure
a commemorative property

less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
Within the past 50 years

Narrative Statement of Significance
(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets)

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

COMMUNITY PLANNING AND
DEVELOPMENT

SETTLEMENT

ARCHITECTURE

Period of Significance
c. 1855

Significant Dates
c. 1855, estimated date of construction
c. 1908, estimated date of relocation

Significant Person
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N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
Daniel Christian lil, builder (attributed)
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INTRODUCTION

The Daniel and Catherine Christian House is located at 170 E. 12" Avenue in Eugene, Lane County,
Oregon. The Classical Revival pioneer house was built in 1855 by Daniel Christian |ll, an 1853 pioneer
who crossed the Oregon Trail from lllinois with his wife Catherine Entyre Christian and five children. The
Classical Revival style was commonly employed on domestic architecture in the Willamette Valley until
about 1860, and the Christian house is one of very few local resources of this type remaining from
Oregon'’s territorial period. Originally part of a farmstead that included several outbuildings, the setting of
the Christian house has gradually changed from agrarian to urban through the natural progression of
development in the Downtown Neighborhood. The house is now located in the southern part of Eugene’s
downtown core. In the 150 years of its existence, the house has undergone some change, including a
slight relocation to the south of its original site, but retains sufficient integrity to effectively convey its style
and period of significance.

SETTING

The Christian House is located on a flat Iot on the south of side of E. 12" Avenue between Pearl and Oak
Streets in Eugene, Lane County, Oregon. The house fronts north on a 41’ x 80’ lot — the entirety of the
nominated area - and is located in the Downtown Neighborhood. (Figs. 1, 2) This mixed residential-
commercial neighborhood is comprised of a variety of building types, including residences, residences
converted to office space, apartment buildings, commercial buildings and churches, and includes the
earliest areas of development in Eugene. The Christian House is located on the original Daniel Christian
Donation Land Claim, which was south of and adjacent to the first platted sections of the city.

In the 1850s the immediate environs consisted of open farmland dotted with agricultural buildings, orchards
and very few houses; the newly-platted commercial area was located several blocks to the north of the
house, centering on the intersections of 8" and 9" Avenues and Willamette Street. (Figs. 3, 4) As the city
of Eugene developed outward from this city center, the surrounding large claims were eventually divided
into smaller parcels; segments of the Christian claim were eventually platted as Christian’s Addition (1884),
Christian’s Second Addition (1885) and John Christian’s Addition to Eugene (1902). Over time the
agricultural character of the building’s surrounds shifted to the paved, urbanized environment seen today.

EXTERIOR DESCRIPTION

This one-and-a-half story side-gable house is irregular in plan, and has a continuous poured concrete
perimeter foundation. Originally nearly square in plan, the current irregular footprint is due to two rear
additions, both dating to the early years of the 20" century. (Fig. 15) The substructure of the original portion
of the building, which measures 29’ wide x 26'6” deep, consists of hand-hewn perimeter sills and two
central support beams. Around the exterior of the house at foundation level is a 12" water table board with
a narrow 12" projecting dripcap. (Photo 17)
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As is commonly found in settlement-era buildings, the walls are balloon-framed with studs that extend from
sill to roofline, covered on the exterior with 18-19"-wide horizontal planks and finished with double-course

lap siding and 5% cornerboards. The siding dates to the early 20" century; originally, the house was clad
in weatherboard siding measuring %’ x 5%” with a 4%” exposure. The house was originally painted white.’

The front (north) elevation is dominated by a full-width front porch. Under the porch are a large picture
window and an off-centered half-light entrance door flanked by a square fixed window. (Photos 6, 7 & 18)
The porch itself has a closed rail clad in cedar shingles, and three large, equally spaced square posts
support the shallow hipped roof. This is not the original construction, but the dimensions, design and
massing of this porch are compatible with the house.? Other buildings of this period display porches with
similar characteristics, particularly the regularly-spaced square posts with simple molding, suggesting that
this porch may be similar to the original design.®

The short wall above the porch roof is blank, rising approximately 24” to the eave. The wide entablature
extends fully across the facade, with no other architectural or decorative features embellishing this
elevation. A patch in the center of the eave molding and frieze board above the porch may indicate an
early dormer or other projecting element on this facade; no other visible or documentary evidence of such a
feature on this building has been found. (Photo 20) A red brick chimney rises from the ridge at the east
end of the house; the fireplace has been removed.

The low-pitched side-gable roof has a longer rear, double-pitch slope, giving a lean-to or saitbox
appearance in profile from the east and west side elevations. (Photos 4, 8, 12) The boxed eaves are
detailed with wide frieze boards and simple bed molding. The house displays the full entablature — albeit
simplified — that is typical of the Classical Revival style, complete with the substantial eave returns
wrapping approximately 32" around the corners of the building. The fenestration pattern on the east
elevation consists of two windows each on the first floor and attic levels. The placement of all windows but
one on this elevation appears to be original; the southern lower opening has been moved about 6” to the
north and slightly enlarged.® The west elevation window pattern appears to have been altered from what
was likely similar to that on the east elevation. (Photo 13, 14) Fenestration is now irregular, including
single and paired one-over-one windows and a single, six-pane sash that may be the only remaining
original sash in the house.

' Pieces of the original exterior siding were discovered while refinishing one of the interior partition walls that had been
patched with a variety of old wood. While the replacement of the original cladding is regrettable, the condition of these remaining
fragments was extremely worn, displaying raised grain and chalky paint.

% The porch does not appear in this form on an undated historic photograph, which indicates a smaller, centered porch with
Gothic Revival or perhaps Queen Anne details. See Photo 4.

® Other examples include the Forbes Barclay House (1849) in Clackamas Co. and the McManus House (¢ 1855) in Jackson
County.

“ Wall patches made visible during interior rehabilitation work indicate the opening was moved. Measurements extrapolated
from historic photographs were compared to measurements of the current opening. See Photo 4.
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The rear (south) elevation of the house has been subject to alterations made between 1912 and 1925.°
The most recent is the gabled two-story addition to the southeast corner, extending to the south
perpendicular to the original roof ridge. (Photos 8, 9) It has a concrete foundation, double-course
horizontal siding, and banks of multi-pane casement, sliding and fixed windows. The overall stylistic tone
suggests the Craftsman influence, with the broad overhanging eaves, decorative brackets, and exposed
rafter tails typical of that period and style. This addition is not readily visible from the front of the building.

To the west of the two-story addition is a one-story gabled wing, also running perpendicular to the ridge of
the original house. (Photos 10-12) It is possible that a portion of the wing is historic; Sanborn maps and a
historic photograph show a similar section of the building extending from the back of the house. This
section appears in varying iterations on Sanborn maps in 1890, 1895, and 1902, and in abbreviated form in
1912 and 1925. One historic photograph labeled “circa 1906” provides a detail view of the east elevation of
the wing displaying details similar to those originally found on the main building (i.e. six-over-six double
hung windows, weatherboard siding, low-pitched roof), as well as two chimneys, suggesting its use as a
kitchen.® (Photo 5) These details imply that the wing may have been original or at least constructed very
early, though no written or photographic evidence has been found from the earliest years of the building’s
existence to verify a date of construction for this feature. The existing external and sub-structural features
do not clearly indicate its age.

Despite the additions and the lack of early photographic evidence, the original slope of the rear roofline, the
eave returns and portions of the frieze detail remain intact on the south facade, still clearly indicating the
early configuration of the house.

Typical of the Classical Revival mode, the detailing on the Christian House is simple, depending heavily on
the restraint and sense of proportion so elemental to the style. The original nine-over-six and six-over-six
double hung wood sash windows were replaced with one-over-one sash sometime prior to 1947, and likely
much earlier. The window openings have 5% flat board trim with a narrow dripcap. (Photos 15, 21) While
the sash are not original, many of the opening locations and sizes are, and trim dimensions seem to be
universal throughout the original portion of the building. Other surface treatments are limited to corner
boards, water table and dripcap, and the broad frieze boards.

In terms of detail, none of the original decorative elements of the building is curved. Jamieson Parker,
District Officer of the 1930s Historic American Buildings Survey effort in the Pacific northwest, observed
that

The moldings in these early buildings are always interesting, when judged with the
understanding of the effects desired and the laborious hand work of producing them. For

® As indicated on Sanborn Fire Insurance maps.

® The 1906 date given on this photograph is suspect. Eugene Christian, the child identified in the photograph, was born in
1889, and appears to be less than one year old in the picture. This suggests either that the date or the identification of the child is in
error. Based on the style of the baby carriage, and the known period of occupation of the house by Daniel and Catherine Christian, the
correct date is more likely circa 1890.
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obvious reasons, plane surfaces were often used to approximate the effect of curved moldings,
and the results were frequently original, strong and altogether admirable. These are perfect
illustrations of the power and significance of their design under physical limitations.”

This lack of curvilinear detail appears to be somewhat unusual in the remaining examples of this type in
Eugene and Lane County, but clearly the desired effect is achieved using only planed moldings. (Photos 4,
14 & 16)

INTERIOR DESCRIPTION

The interior of the Christian House has been altered in several ways, though all changes occurred during
the historic period. Built as a single-family residence, the house had been remodeled and converted to
apartments (two units on the ground level, and two in the former attic space) by 1947.

The original main footprint was nearly square, the plan likely divided into four rooms on the main floor (two
rooms deep and two rooms wide) plus an attic. (Fig. 18) The aforementioned one-story wing extended
back from the present-day kitchen, accessed by a door that remains in place today. Assumptions about
the original floorplan are based on a 1950s analysis of another building of similar age and style (now
demolished) by Professor Philip Dole, as well as remaining physical evidence in the Christian House
including the configuration of the orlglnal substructure, structural details in the first floor walls and ceilings,
and the location of walls in the attic.® A fireplace was located in the northeast room but was removed,
probably when the house was relocated. The red brick chimney remains in place, and patches in the floor
and sill mark the location of the fireplace.

Modifications to this original plan occurred with the early 20" century addition that added an extension to
the southeast corner of the house; at approximately the same time it appears that the kitchen wing was
lengthened. (Figs. 8-11) Further modifications provided accommodation for a bathroom (adjacent to the
kitchen) and converted the front bedroom to an entrance vestibule, adding a staircase to provide the attic
apartments. (Fig. 16; Photos 33-36) No indication of the original attic access has yet been found. It is
possigble that access was gained from either an interior pull-down ladder, or perhaps an outside ladder or
stair.

There are 8" baseboards and wood floors of varying ages throughout the house. The original interior walls
are clad in 17-19" wide horizontal planks that were historically finished with muslin and wallpaper, evidence
of which remains beneath the later application of drywall. All windows and doors are trimmed with flat
boards and a fillet detail, typical of turn-of-the-century interior trim work. (Photo 31) Smooth-finished board
ceilings remain under the drywall. The kitchen cabinetry and sink appear to date to circa 1920. (Photo 27)
The half-light kitchen door leading to the rear wing consists of four lights above two smaller raised panels,

Jamleson Parker, “Historic American Buildings Survey,” Oregon Historical Quarterly (March 1934), 40.

Phlhp Dole, “Farmhouse and Barn in Early Lane County,” Lane County Historian (August 1965) 26.

® There is some supporting historical evidence for this possibility. Accordlng to Philip Dole, other buildings of this type had no
internal attic access. External ladders or stairs were used instead. See Dole, “Farmhouse and Barn in Early Lane County,” 26.



Christian, Daniel and Catherine, House Lane Co., OR
Name of Property County and State

NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __ 7 Page __ 5

with simple hardware. One other historic and possibly original door remains in the house; this has a three-
panel pattern — one horizontal above two elongated vertical panels. (Figures 28, 30)

The entry and stairway to the upper floor display the same early twentieth century detailing that is found in
the rest of the house. The stair is a three-run split stair with wood treads and risers and a railing with
simple square balusters and molded handrail. (Photos 34, 35) The upstairs space, probably originally one
large attic room, has been divided into two small apartments, a stair landing/hallway, and a common
bathroom. (Fig. 17)

The apartments are virtually unchanged from the time of their creation. Spatial arrangements appear to be
original. Floors are secondary narrow fir, laid over the original wide board floors. Trim consists of 8”
baseboards, and flat board window and door trim. The five-panel doors have newer hardware. Kitchen
cabinets appear to date to the 1950s.

Unit #2 (south side of attic) consists of a living room/bedroom, kitchen and closet/storage room. The
kitchen was originally a sleeping porch, with horizonally-applied beadboard interior wall and ceiling finish,
and banks of sliding multi-paned windows on the upper half of all walls. Wall and ceiling finish in the
remainder of the apartment is drywall or plaster. The small, closet-like room contains the only original
window left in the building. This single six-pane wood sash is installed as a hopper window. (Photos 37-41)

At this writing upstairs Unit #1 and the first floor kitchen wing apartment were occupied by tenants and not
accessible for further analysis or photography.

ALTERATIONS

Over its lifespan, the Christian House has seen many changes as is evident with the study of Sanborn
maps from 1890 to 1962, historic photographs, personal recollections of owners and residents, and
analysis of the building itself. As the primary residence of a working farm for approximately 50 years —
during the earliest years of European settlement in the Willamette Valley — upgrades, improvements,
repairs and alterations are inevitable. The fact that the building has survived at all is probably due to these
changes, rather than in spite of them.

The earliest drawing available (1890 Sanborn map) indicates a main square-ish footprint with a full-width
front porch and a rectangular wing extending from the back. This basic configuration appears to remain
relatively unchanged for many years. Later maps (1895-1902) show the appearance (and subsequent
disappearance a decade later) of a small addition on the west side of the main portion of the house. The
addition and subtraction of this appendage likely account, at least in part, for the now-jumbled fenestration
pattern on the west elevation. (Photo 13; Figs. 6-9)

Around 1908 (between 1902 and 1908) the Christian House was re-positioned, being moved about 100
feet to the south, presumably to make way for the extension of 12™ Avenue between Pearl and Oak
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Streets.'® The house retains its original aspect (facing north), and appears to have been slightly altered at
that time by the truncation or replacement of the rear wing.

Other alterations, previously mentioned and thus far undated, include the Craftsman-era rear gable
addition, window replacement, replacement of siding, and porch alterations. In addition there is a central
section of the front eave that has been cut and/or replaced.

Known changes to the interior include addition of a bathroom, creation of an entry vestibule downstairs,
and division of the upstairs into apartments. Interior detail during the 1850s would have been relatively
simple, particularly in a house as modest as the Christian House. Probably a simple fireplace surround
was the only overtly decorative feature other than the windows and doors, door and window trim and
baseboards."

While not true to its 1850s origins, the current interior character of the house does date to the historic
period. In its current state, the interior clearly reflects the early 20" century interior sensibility. The wide
doorways and relatively open floor plan, window and door trim with fillet detailing, and in the addition areas,
broad expanses of windows are all typical features of that period. The relative simplicity of the current
interior is not a significant deviation from the modest interiors of the 1850s.

LANDSCAPE FEATURES AND OUTBUILDINGS

A newer metal storage shed is located to the south of the kitchen wing, and is a non-historic, non-
contributing feature.

Originally a large barn and several outbuildings were associated with the Christian House. Landscape
features would have included farm fields, orchards, fences and a garden area. Sanborn maps suggest that
the barn stood until the early 1910s, and possibly in altered form until after 1912. The only possible
remnant of this rural landscape may be the very large cherry tree at the south end of the tax lot. No other
settlement-era feature — built or natural — remains in the immediate vicinity of the Christian house.

"% This date bracket is based on the 1902 Sanborn map in which the house is located at its original site, and the 1908
construction date of the building next door. The sewer line for the Christian House runs underneath this neighboring house implying
that the Christian house was there first.

" Observation of the interiors of other buildings in Lane County of this period and style confirm the simplicity of interior styling,
as well as the tendency for upgrades. The 1853 Lane County Clerk’s Office shows no molded interior features, making use of only flat
sawn boards for trim. The ¢ 1857 Henderson House displays similar detailing. Coburg’s Diamond House, built in 1854 also retains
some of its simple flat board interior and exterior window and door trim. The 1857 Masterson House has been extensively remodeled,
and retains little or no interior integrity. See Section 8 for comparative analysis of these resources.
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SUMMARY

Located on the south side of E. 12" Avenue between Oak and Pearl Streets, the circa 1855 Daniel and
Catherine Christian House is the oldest house remaining in Eugene that is directly linked to the
community’s settlement past. The house was listed in 1975 as a City of Eugene Historic Landmark, and
was later identified as a property of “Primary” significance in the 1989 Downtown Survey. The building is in
good condition, and retains a sufficient degree of integrity to convey its original style and period of
significance. The changes that are evident today were made during the historic period, and reflect early
20" century stylistic tastes. These alterations do not significantly hinder the building’s ability to convey its
historical style, design, function, or associations.

The Christian House is being nominated for listing in the National Register under the Multiple Properties
Submission (MPS) “Residential Architecture in Eugene, Oregon, 1850 to 1950." The house is eligible
under this MPS and National Register Criterion A for its representation as the oldest remaining residential
building in Eugene, and for its associations with the early years of Eugene’s settlement and community
development. As one of only a handful of remaining resources from the settlement period, the Christian
House is an important and rare representative of that era, displaying the physical characteristics of the
Classical Revival style. It is therefore also eligible under National Register Criterion C for its architectural
merit. As it has been moved approximately 100’ from its original location, the Christian House also meets
Criteria Consideration B for moved properties. This slight relocation to another site on the original land
claim does not affect the property’s significance or associations.

EARLY EUGENE SETTLEMENT

The Christian House is located in the southern portion of the current Downtown Neighborhood. Originally
sited well outside the central business area of Eugene, the subject property is now surrounded by a mix of
commercial and residential development, with little hint of its agricultural beginnings remaining visible in
today’s landscape.

European settlement of the southern Willamette Valley began with the arrival of Elijiah Bristow, Felix Scott,
William Dodson, and Eugene Skinner in 1846. Bristow, Scott and Dodson took claims in Pleasant Hill, but
Skinner opted slightly further west and proceeded to built a cabin on the shoulder of what is known today
as Skinner’s Butte in Eugene. The earliest vestiges of development appeared on the east side of the
Butte, but after earning the nickname “Skinner's Mud Hole” the fledgling settlement soon moved to the
higher ground along the southern edge of the Butte.

Arriving at Eugene City in 1853 (the same year as the Christians), Harrison R. Kincaid later described the
settlement:
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We landed at the site of the present town of Eugene October 11, 1853. There was not a house
on the town site then, only stakes in the grass to mark the owners of lots and blocks which had
been platted the year before. There were a few houses outside of the town lots; a little store at
the ferry; Eugene Skinner’s residence on the west; Hilyard Shaw’'s home where the University of
Oregon is now; and two or three other homes where the town now is, but they were outside of
the lots then laid out.’

The key components contributing to the economic success of the community soon appeared: the millrace
and sawmill 1851, which resulted in the construction of the first frame house by 1852, and a flour mill in
1855.2 Other commercial and industrial developments soon followed. After the establishment of the
county of Lane in 1851, Eugene City became the County seat in 1853. Adjacent parcels of 40 acres each
were accepted from Skinner and Charnel Mulligan, and a new townsite was surveyed and platted,
centering on present day 8" Avenue and Oak Street. (Fig. 3) Future additions to the City were derived
from the land claims to the west, south and east of this early plat. The Christians arrived in Eugene this
same year, taking their claim south of the new plat and settling in to the community of less than 500 souls.
Eugene City was incorporated as a city in 1864.

3

The first five plats in Eugene City were all added by Eugene Skinner or Charnel Mulligan
between 1851 and 1856. Hilyard Shaw made his first addition in 1856 in the heart of what is
now the West University neighborhood [an area immediately adjacent to the Christian House].
Near the commercial areas the large land claims were subdivided into smaller farms, which
were subsequently divided again into smaller sections or individual home sites. Although much
of this progress occurred from the 1880s on, urban development as it is recognized today began
in the late 1860s and 1870s. The region surrounding the core area ... consisted of farmland, as
indicated in a lithograph printed around 1859.* (Fig. 4)

The initial and primary endeavor of most early settlers was subsistence farming, followed by farming for
market (often wheat), which resulted in a predominantly agricultural environment in the areas surrounding
the commercial core. Through the 1870s there were no city streets south of 11" Avenue or west of
Lawrence Street, only farmiand. With the growth of commerce and industry came the infill of larger parcels
and more definitive street grid patterns.

' Leonore Gale Barette, Thumbpapers: Sketches of Pioneer Days (Eugene, Oregon: Lane County Historical Society, 2001),
64.

2 Eugene Planning Department, “Millrace Historic District Justification for Nomination — Draft” (City of Eugene Planning
Department Files, July 1990): np; Jonathan Pincus, “Eugene Downtown Core Area Historic Context Statement” (Eugene: City of
Eugene Planning and Development Department, 1991), 5-7.

® Irena Dunn Williams, Reminiscences of Early Eugene and Lane County, Oregon, (Eugene: Shelton-Turnbull-Fuller, 1941),
17. From George Belshaw letter written in 1858.

“ Michelle Dennis and Liz Carter “City of Eugene Historic Context Statement” (City of Eugene Planning Department, 1994),
31.
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One of the significant early developments in Eugene was the establishment of a university. When the
location of such an institution was being discussed, it was initially “...agreed to select a site for the
university on the D.R. Christian land just south of Eleventh Street, and between High and Oak Streets,
containing some ten acres, that being a central point between the factions [debating the location]...” This
decision was overridden because of the flatness of the lot, lack of drainage, and the fact that the property
would soon be the center of town.®

By the 1880s the area between the new University, ultimately located on part of Hilyard Shaw's claim to the
east of the Christian land, and the commercial core had been mostly filled in. The early houses of the
1850s through the 1870s remained, dispersed throughout the early plats.® In 1884 and 1885 the 209-acre
Christian land claim began to be divided with the creation of Christian’s 1% and 2™ Additions to Eugene,
respectively; John Christian’s Addition was platted in 1902. (Fig. 14) Deed records indicate that starting
with the 1884 platting of the 1% Christian’s Addition, through about 1927, two to three lots per year were
sold, contributing significantly to the steady urbanization of this area south of downtown. With the
extension of 12" Avenue by 1912, any remaining agricultural character of the immediate surrounds of the
Christian House virtually disappeared.’

Throughout its growth period the immediate neighborhood around the Christian House was home to a wide
variety of residents. Its early agricultural character, its proximity to the downtown core, the University and
later Sacred Heart Hospital, led to a mixture of residents and tenants that included working and merchant
class families and young professionals.

Today commercial development dominates the Downtown Neighborhood, but pockets of residential
buildings do remain. Because the neighborhood grew over a long span of time, the broadest range of ages
and styles is represented, from the Classical and Gothic Revivals to all types of single- and multiple-family
20" century construction, though the older buildings are slowly being lost as downtown development
continues. The Christian House stands as the oldest residence in Eugene that was built by a settler and is
still located on its original land claim, making it a significant reminder of Eugene’s early community
development.

THE CHRISTIAN FAMILY HOUSE

Daniel Christian Ill, his wife Catherine Entyre Christian and their five children departed their home in Mt.
Carroll lllinois in the spring of 1852. (Photos 1-3) The wagon train arrived in Oregon that fall, and the
Christians’ “... first actual home in Oregon was in Washington County, on a squatter’'s cabin in the hills, five
miles from Hillsboro...” where they spent the winter of 1852-53.°

® J.J. Walton, “A Brief History of the Establishment and Location of the University of Oregon at Eugene,” Oregon Historical
Quarterly VIl {1906); 149.

® Pincus, 12.

” As seen in comparison of 1902, 1912 and 1925 Sanborn maps.

® Irena Dunn Williams, “Brief History of the Christians and Entyres: Paternal and Maternal Ancestors of Christianne Cecila
Christian Dunn" (Private manuscript in collection of property owner), 11.
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It had been the original intention of the Christians to make California their destination, but their
plans were changed before reaching the divide and Oregon was decided upon. It is thought
that a chance meeting with a man named [David] Masters had some influence in making this
alteration in the plans. Masters was a former resident of Mt. Carroll and was returning for a
second trip to the coast ... and seems to have persuaded the Christians to come with him into
Oregon...

Mr. Masters ... had preceded them during that first fall to Eugene at the head of the Willamette
Valley and had taken up a Donation Clain [sic] of one hundred and sixty acres. He also had
established a lumber mill. Daniel now came to Eugene. Shortly after his arrival, Masters had
an altercation with some desperate characters living west of Eugene, and was brutally attacked
and maltreated. Fearing for his life ... he finally decided to leave the country, stipulating with
D.R. Christian to exchange his donation claim in Eugene for Catherine Christian’s share in the
Entyre estate in Adeline, lllinois. °

The land that the Christians acquired comprised claims #72 and #47, consisting of 209 acres, apparently
none of which had been “proved up” by Masters. As was customary, the northern half of the claim was
legally in Catherine’s name, and the southern half went to Daniel."® (Fig. 5) Family sources indicate that
Christian, a carpenter by trade, built a log cabin near what is now the northwest corner of 12" and Pearl
Streets, and within two years had erected the frame house that stands today." 1854 survey notes indicate
that a “house” was located on the claim at the time of the survey, but it is unclear whether this refers to the
log cabin or the frame house.

Once shelter was established, settlers typically built a barn and eventually other agricultural outbuildings as
needed. Such buildings appear on the earliest Sanborn maps available for the Christian site, dated 1890.
Orchard trees including a variety of apples grew to the south and west of the house. '

Irena Dunn Williams, one of the Christian grandchildren who was born in 1856, reminisced about her
grandparents’ house and farm life in various writings. When traveling from her childhood home in
Springfield (Oregon) to visit her grandparents, she recalled that:

° Ibid, 11; Barette, 67.

10 Donatlon Land Claim certificate, 1866, on microfilm at Lane County Deeds and Records. This claim was bounded roughly
by 11" and 24" Avenues on the north and south, and by the alleys between Willamette and Oak Streets, and between High and Pear!
Streets on the west and east, respectively.

' Williams, “Brief History...,”, 6 and 11; Daniel Christian is listed in 1850 and 1860 census records as a farmer, and in 1870 as
a carpentgr
Ibid 12.
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There were no streets south of Eleventh, but what is now Alder Street extended as a County
Road south into the hills and over to pioneer farms, as did Willamette Street. Here we neared
Grandfather's home and only three or four houses on either side intervened. My two young
uncles could easily spy the carriage several blocks away, and they always came running to
meet us... [as we] turned up the lane on what is now Pearl Street to Grandpa’s picket gate...'

Once the family moved to Eugene, to a house near the Christian’s, visits to their grandparent’s house were
much easier.

When we were young we love to run through the orchard to Grandma'’s house... We did help
stir the apple butter in season, sitting on a high stool and pulling backward and forward a long
handle to which...passed to and fro through the mushy mass to keep it from sticking to the
bottom of the huge brass kettle. "

The Christians’ contributions to the development of Eugene were likely similar to many of the early settlers
to an area — all efforts were crucial to the growth and success of the pioneer community. Both Daniel and
Catherine were founding members of the Methodist Church in Eugene, and Daniel

is said to have cut and hand-hewed the lumber for the First Methodist Church building, constructed in
1858." He was one of the first Deacons of the church, and she “...had the care of the Communion Service
for many years...""® Little else is known of the couple’s social or civic involvements.

Daniel and Catherine Christian had eight children in all, and several remained in the Eugene-Springfield
area as adults. Catherine died in 1889. Daniel continued to live in the original farmhouse (along with his
daughter Etha, and his son John W. and John’s wife Mary) until his death in 1891. At that time all of his
personal and real property was left to his daughter Etha, with sons Samuel and John W. appointed
executors.”” John W. and Mary moved into a new house around the corner (1238 Pearl) in 1893; Mary
died in 1896."® On Etha’s death in 1905, the ownership of the original house and remaining property
appears to have transferred to John W. Christian.

"> Williams, Reminiscences..., 19. See Photo 4 for view of “picket gate.”

" Williams, “Brief History...,” 12. This house, known as the Dunn House, is extant but significantly altered. It has been
relocated about one block to the southeast of its original location.

5 Harpham, “The Daniel Christian House..." 14-19; Mrs. E.L. Christian, private manuscript in Christian Family Papers
(Eugene: Lane County Museum holdings); Lee H. Nelson, “Survey of Eugene Church Buildings 1857-1938,” developed from a listing of
church buildings for the course History of American Architecture Ill, taught by Marion Dean Ross, University of Oregon, 1955.
Apparently Christian had also built the house he and his family left behind in Mt. Carroli, Illinois. Paul Fay Christian, email message to
author, December 30, 2006.

'S Williams, “Brief History...," 12.

' The whole of Christian’s property was left to Etha because she was confined to a wheelchair, and “...unable to make her
own living and | wish to make her comfortable during her natural life or as much so as | possibly can.” Will of D. R. Christian, December
13, 1890. Located in Lane County Courthouse, Probate Archives.

'8 John continued to maintain a listed address at the Pearl Street house until his death in 1925, though in 1909 he purchased a
farm in the small town of Noti, west of Eugene, from Tyron Brackett.



Christian, Daniel and Catherine, House Lane Co., OR
Name of Property County and State

NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __8 Page __ 6

Circa 1908 the house was re-positioned about 100 feet south onto lot 1 of block 3 of Christian’s First
Addition. (Figs. 8, 9) The land on which the farmhouse sits today remained in the Christian family until
1908, when it was sold to Tyron Brackett for the sum of $1600.00." By 1912 it seems the house was used
as a rental, as none of the owners’ names appear at this address during that span of time. After several
changes of ownership, it was purchased by Lewis and Ella Meisel in 1947 and converted to apartments.
They sold the property in 1975. The current owner purchased the house in 1995.

Although slightly re-positioned, the Christian house meets National Register Criteria Consideration B, since
its architectural and associative significance remain strong. While moving properties from their original
location can result in destruction of the relationship between the resource and its surroundings, the
Christian House was moved only about 100 feet and retains its original aspect (facing north), remains on its
original land claim and in its original environs. Urbanization was taking place around the building before
the move and continued after the relocation, and this development caused greater detachment of the
building from its historic setting than the move itself. The relocation did result in the loss of historic fabric
such as the original foundation, though the hand-hewn sills remain intact. Historical archaeological
remains may be present on the original site, but were likely destroyed during subsequent construction and
modern development.

THE CLASSICAL REVIVAL STYLE

The Classical Revival style has its roots in the classical architecture of Greece. With the rediscovery of the
antiquities of Greece and Rome in the 17" and early 18" centuries and subsequent publication of drawings
of these findings, architects and designers in Europe and America had the benefit of published pictures of
real Greek and Roman designs for guidance.

Greek Revival architecture first appeared in Europe in the mid-1700s...and crossed the Atlantic
some fifty years later. The first representations — America’s high style phase — were, for the
most part, created by professional architects who used the materials and sourcebooks of
European designers... Close behind the high style period of Greek Revival architecture, the
vernacular phase exploded onto the American landscape and spread from coast to coast.
Using pattern books and other buildings for guidance, and making use of the handiest or least
expensive materials available, designers and builders crafted a remarkable collection of

edifices.?°

' The exact date of the move is not known. Sanborn maps of 1902 show the building in its original location. Deed records of
1907 indicate the original site was sold for the sum of $800, and in 1908 the current lot was sold for $1600. The sewer line for the
Christian house is located underneath the neighboring building, which was constructed in 1908. This, along with the 1908 sales price of
$1600, suggests that the Christian house was already in place on its new lot by 1908.

?Robert K. Sutton, Americans Interpret the Parthenon: The Progression of Greek Revival Architecture from the East Coast to
Oregon 1800-1860 (Niwot, ,Colorado: University Press of Colorado, 1992), 9.



Christian, Daniel and Catherine, House Lane Co.. OR
Name of Property County and State

NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number __8 Page __ 7

Intensely popular in the east in the early years of the 1800s, the style was soon appearing in Ohio,
Kentucky, indiana and lllinois with westward migration. Large numbers of early settlers came from these
states to the west coast, and the Classical Revival appeared in a variety of forms in Oregon through about
1860.

The first frontier houses in Oregon were usually log cabins or hewn log houses, constructed to provide
temporary shelter until a frame house could be built. With the introduction of sawmills, buildings of
identifiable style began to appear, the earliest being those in the Classical Revival vein. Characteristics
common to most varieties include the use of often modest, but classically-inspired details in the low roof
pitch, full entablature, eave returns, suggestion of base and capital on porch posts, multi-paned double
hung windows, entrance doors accented with sidelights and transom, and horizontal weatherboard siding
most often painted white. The overall impression of restraint and balanced proportion was evident in all
Classical Revival buildings. “For the first decade, pioneer house cost, size and character must have felt
restrictions due more to circumstance, location, available materials then to personal standards.”'

Interpretations of the Classical Revival in Oregon depended on the origin of the builder; building forms
derived from both northeastern and southern traditions were found throughout the Willamette Valley.
According to Jamieson Parker, the District Officer for the Civil Works Administration’s Historic American
Buildings Survey (HABS) of the mid-1930s, a large number of early Oregon settlers had come from or been
exposed to the southern building types, based on the dominant settlement-era building types that were
encountered during his work.?? He further stated that “.. the heaviness and bombast seen so often in
southern Greek revival buildings...” was seldom suggested in the Oregon versions, which seemed to adopt
a more refined interpretation of their predecessors.”® By the mid-1860s the Gothic Revival style had begun
to dominate new residential construction, and the use of the Classical Revival was all but abandoned.

In University of Oregon Professor Philip Dole’s article “Farmhouse and Barn in Early Lane County”
published in 1965 in the Lane County Historian, the author states that “Examination of the farmhouses
between 1850 and 1865 reveals that in terms of size, height, basic plan and general proportions there were
a half dozen types, found in other counties too.” The article dilates on three of these types, labeled “Type
One,” “Type Two" and “Type Three;” the Christian House is categorized as a Type One building.

Few houses of the Type One group now survive. But one rare example must be the Daniel
Christian Ill farmhouse built on 160 acres in 1855, now slightly relocated at 170 East 12"
Avenue, Eugene. lts type characteristics are only slightly disguised across the front through
newer windows and door. Judging from the farms illustrated by Walling, Lane County a
century ago must have had many such houses... [and] characteristics of common to Type
One houses distinguish them from all others.

21 philip Dole, “Farmhouse and Barn in Early Lane County,” Lane County Historian 10 no. 2 (August 1965): 24.
zi Jamieson Parker, “Historic American Buildings Survey,” Oregon Historical Quarterly 35 vol 1 (March 1934): 38.
Ibid, 39.
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These one and a half story houses were built with the eaves and ridge parallel to the road,
or to face the main approach. The short, rather flat gable roof across the front of the house
was in contrast to the long even flatter roof that covered the back two thirds of the building...
Under the ridge across the front of the house was a loft, usually unfinished. Other important
characteristics are the end chimney and the absence of halls.?*

In regards to the detailing typical of this period and of the Classical Revival style, Professor Dole states:

Many houses clearly indicate the 1850s as their date from the use of large rake and
architrave boards and in the heavy boxed returns which carried the eave form around, three
or four feet, onto the gable ends. This modest indication of a classical pediment is
illustrated on the Daniel Christian house... Not all old houses built in the 1850s had this
classic detail; in the following decades it disappeared from construction altogether.?®

The characteristics of the Classical Revival are, therefore, present and identifiable on the Christian House
and the building is not only a rare survivor of its era, but rare within its particular classification as defined by
Professor Dole.

Comparative Analysis

Other than cemeteries, few resources from the early settlement period (1846-1860) remain in Eugene or
Lane County, and fewer still are residences of the Classical Revival style. While the number of total
buildings in existence statewide in the 1850s was relatively small, a large percentage of those early houses
were built with a clear reference to the classical tradition. It is interesting to note that a large majority of the
buildings surveyed in Oregon by HABS in the 1930s were of the pre-1860 vintage, with many of these pre-
dating 1850. This came as some surprise to the initial investigators who had anticipated surveying
resources dating from 1860-1870.%® That many of these — as well as others that were not investigated at
that time - have been lost there can be no doubt.

There are currently two other settlement-era buildings in Eugene listed in the National Register, and one
listed as a local landmark. The Henderson House (c 1860) is listed as a contributing resource in the East
Skinner Butte National Register Historic District, and is currently being used as a residence. The Lane
County Clerk’s Building (1853) is individually listed in the National Register, and is currently located at the
Lane County Historical Museum. Both of these buildings have been moved from their original sites. The
William Masterson House (1857) is a recently-listed City of Eugene Landmark that continues to be used as
a single-family residence.

2 Dole, “Farmhouse and Bam in Early Lane County,” 26. The Walling mentioned here is A.G. Walling, author of the 1884
publication /llustrated History of Lane County, Oregon.

%% Dole, “Farmhouse and Barn in Early Lane County,” 27.

%8 parker (March 1934), 34.
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Of the other “Type One" houses identified by Professor Dole and mentioned in A.G. Walling's /llustrated
History of Lane County — the Joel Inman, Isaac Vanduyn, Vince McClure and Jacob Gillespie houses —
none remains.

OREGON STATEWIDE INVENTORY - CITY OF EUGENE

Name Address Date Condition/Description
Daniel Christian lll House | Classical Revival c 1855 | Extant; altered, moved
170 E. 12", Eugene
Lane County Clerks Building | Classical Revival 1853 Extant; moved, minor
Lane County Fairgrounds modifications
William Masterson House Classical Revival 1857 Extant, major modifications
2050 Madison, Eugene
E.P. Henderson House Classical Revival ¢ 1860 Extant; moved 1909, major
. E. Skinner Butte NR Hist. modifications
| Dist.

¢ The Lane County Clerk’s Building (1853) is individually listed in the National Register and is the oldest
building remaining in the City of Eugene, possibly in Lane County. This diminutive building has been
moved several times, but retains a high degree of architectural integrity and is an excellent example of
the Classical Revival style in the city and the county. Originally built as a public building, it was later
converted for use as a residence.

e The William and Eliza Masterson House (1857) is located at 2050 Madison Street. The house was
recently listed as a Eugene City Landmark for its association with the settlement era in Eugene.
Although the house has been heavily remodeled, it retains enough of the original exterior Classical
Revival details to convey its period of significance.

¢ The Henderson House (¢ 1860) is located at 260 High Street and is part of the East Skinner Butte
National Register Historic District. The Classical Revival building is thought to have originally been part
of the Red Top Tavern, and has been moved to its current site. Alterations include window
replacement, secondary or replacement siding, probable removal of part of the original building
(presumably when it was moved) and a side kitchen addition.

Expanding the context to include all of Lane County yields several additional properties identified in the
Statewide Inventory as dating from the 1840s through 1860, including several Classical Revival houses.
All have minor to major modifications.
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Lane Co.. OR

County and State

OMB Approval No.

1024-0018

OREGON STATEWIDE INVENTORY - LANE COUNTY

Name Style/Type Date Condition/Description
George Armitage House Classical Revival 1855 Extant; moved 1917, major
Coburg/Eugene vicinity modifications

- Diamond-Pollard House Classical Revival 1854 Extant; major modifications
Coburg NR Historic District

" Abraham Landes House Classical Revival c 1850 Demolished

| Old Coburg Road, Eugene vic.
David Mosby House Classical Revival ¢ 1860 Extant; integrity not known
Cottage Grove vicinity
William Stevens House Federal c 1851 Demolished
Springfield vicinity

. David Zumwalt House Federal c 1859 Extant; major modifications

Territorial Road, Eugene vic.

To further emphasize the relative rarity of this building style, one source states that in 1992 only 32
remaining Classical Revival buildings had been identified throughout Oregon, the data taken from the
Historic American Buildings Survey, the National Register and the Oregon Statewide Inventory.?’

Other resources remaining from these early years of Eugene and Oregon’s development are few, not only

in Eugene but throughout the Willamette Valley and Oregon. In Eugene, other than cemeteries, these
include the Millrace (1851), the street grid system (1853), “Courthouse Square” or what is now known as
the Park Blocks in downtown Eugene (1853), and perhaps a half dozen buildings dating from the decade

1860-1870 which would fall into the stylistic category of Gothic Revival rather than Classical Revival. Most,
if not all of these have been altered to varying degrees. None, including those already listed in the National

Register, remains as-built.

7 Sutton, 113.
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MPS Nomination Criteria: Residential Architecture in Eugene, Oregon, 1850 to 1950

The following general registration requirements apply to all property types nominated under this
Multiple Property Submission (more detailed information can be found in the MPS Form):

1.

The house must have been constructed between 1850 and 1950.
The Christian House was built circa 1855.
The house must meet one or more of the National Register criteria.

The Christian House is being nominated under National Register Criterion A for its association with
early settlement and residential development in Eugene, Oregon, and under Criterion C for its
architectural merit.

Character-defining features should be intact and sufficient integrity retained.

The house retains the key character-defining features of this style which include the horizontal
emphasis in its massing, the asymmetrical side-gable roof, and the pronounced entablature detail at
the eaves.

Resources constructed as part of a larger complex must be evaluated in terms of the broader
contexts associated with the complex

None of the resources historically associated with the Christian House (barns, outbuildings or
fences) remains.

Resources built in great numbers of which many still exist, should be considered eligible as
contributing resources in a larger context such as a district or cultural landscape. A single resource
of which there are many examples remaining may not be considered eligible as a single resource
unless the resource represents a significant example of an architectural style, an engineering or
construction method, or the work of a master OR it alone best represents a significant person’s
productive life.

The Christian House is one of very few of its type and age remaining, and according to family
tradition was constructed by Daniel Christian Ill. Therefore this General Registration Requirement
does not apply.

Associated outbuildings should be included as contributing resources when appropriate.

No associated contributing outbuildings remain on or near the property.
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7. Intentionally developed landscapes should be evaluated for significance and included as
contributing resources when appropriate.

None of the original or historic landscape features remain on or near the property, therefore this
General Registration Requirement does not apply.

8. Additions to or renovations of resources constructed prior to 1950 must be considered in the
context of the entire property and its history.

Many of the alterations to the house were made during the historic period (between ¢ 1908 and the
1940s) and are not immediately evident to the casual observer. These changes help to convey the
building’s development and functional history. The alterations have taken into account the scale of
the building, and in themselves reflect a continuum of development. Overall, they do not detract
from its overall style, architectural merit or historical associations.

In addition, the following criteria must be met in order to list a single family dwelling on the National
Register of Historic Places in the context of this multiple property listing:

1. The house must have been constructed between 1850 and 1950.

The Daniel & Catherine Christian House was constructed circa 1855, and is the oldest remaining
residential building in Eugene making it eligible under this criterion.

2. The house must be eligible under one or more of the National Register criteria.

The Daniel & Catherine Christian House is being nominated under Criterion A for its association with
the early settlement and residential development of Eugene, and Criterion C for its architectural merit
as one of the last remaining buildings of the Classical Revival style in Eugene.

3. Character defining features should be intact and sufficient integrity retained. Regardless of current use,
the house should retain key features, including design, plan and spatial organization, materials, and
workmanship. ldeally, the building should be in its original location.

The Daniel & Catherine Christian House was moved approximately 100 feet from its original location,
presumably to accommodate construction of East 12" Avenue as a through street. The building
retains elements of the Classical Revival design, plan, spatial organization, materials and unique
workmanship of the original construction. Most of the major alterations were completed in the early 20"
century and are now considered to be historic.
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5. Due to the scarcity of single-family dwellings dating from the settlement period, the standards pertaining
to architectural integrity may be somewhat less restrictive than those applicable to more recent
contexts. Minimal physical integrity may be acceptable if the house still reflects the design features
usually associated with settlement period houses.

Despite some changes over the last 150 years, the Christian House remains a good example of early
settlement domestic architecture. After the log cabin, the Classical Revival was the earliest
architectural style employed during the 1840s-1860s in Oregon, but nearly all examples in the current
Eugene city limits and throughout Lane County have been either lost or significantly altered. While the
Christian House has experienced some changes, most of these occurred during the historic period
(over fifty years ago), and the house continues to clearly convey its style, period of construction and
significance through the remaining character-defining features.

7. Intentionally developed landscapes should be evaluated for significance and included as contributing
resources when appropriate.

The Daniel & Catherine Christian House was originally constructed as the primary dwelling for a
settlement era farm. By 1885, the southern limits of Eugene were expanding and the 209 acre
Christian family donation land claim began to be divided and subdivided. By 1912, the agricultural
character had disappeared. Today the house is located on a small lot with no evidence of an
intentionally designed landscape.

CONCLUSION

As a rare survivor from Oregon’s Territorial period and Eugene and Lane County’s infancy, the Christian
House is an important community marker both socially and architecturally. It continues to convey its
original period, function and style clearly though modestly.

Under Criterion A, the Christian House meets the criteria set forth in the Multiple Property Submittal
“Residential Architecture in Eugene, Oregon 1850 to 1950” as one of a handful of local examples of mid-
nineteenth century residential architecture that was being constructed during the early settlement period
throughout Oregon. It is the oldest remaining building constructed by a settler as a residence, still located
on its original land claim, in the city of Eugene.

Although slightly re-positioned, the Christian house meets National Register Criteria Consideration B, since
its architectural and associative significance remain strong.

Additionally, the house meets National Register Criterion C as a good local example of the Classical
Revival style employed by early settlers in the 1850s so rarely seen today. Subsequent changes made 50
to 75 years after the initial construction do not detract from the building’s significance, as they reflect the
owners' desire to “update” at the turn of the 20" century using the stylistic influences of that period. It is
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one of only three known Classical Revival buildings to remain in Eugene and one of six known in Lane
County. lts ability to convey its architectural significance and its importance to the residential growth of
Eugene is evident. Perhaps more importantly it stands as a last reminder of the pioneer period.

...architectures of all times and places give the interpreter a seemingly infallible insight into the
lives of their creators...but its truth is never more enlightening than in studying the buildings of
pioneer settlers, who, having outlived the days of struggle for mere existence, were able to give
fuller expression to their ideals, and incidentally to many of the traditions and influences which
combined to produce these ideals.?®

%8 parker (March 1934), 38.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The nominated area consists of all of tax lot #9800 in Lot 1, Block 3 of Christian’s First Addition to Eugene, in
Section 31, Township 17S, Range 3W of Lane County, Oregon. The lot measures 41 feet by 80 feet.

VERBAL BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The boundaries of the nominated area are the legal bounds of the tax lot on which the house is located, as
described in the Verbal Boundary Description.
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Figure 1. USGS map showing location of Christian House.
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The Christian house is V2 block south of block 19 of this map.
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Figure 4.> Kuchel & Dresel lithograph of Eugene City, 1859.
(Courtesy Bancroft Library. http://content.cdlib.org/ark:/13030/tf409nb5n8/?layout=metadata&brand=o0ac)
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PHOTOS (Historic)
All historic photographs printed on Epson paper with Epson PictureMate ink.

1 of 41 Daniel and Catherine Christian House
Lane County, Oregon
Photographer unknown
Date of photo unknown
Original held at Lane County Historical Museum, number GN5017
Portrait of Daniel R. Christian Il|

2 of 41 Daniel and Catherine Christian House
Lane County, Oregon
Photographer unknown
Date of photo unknown
Original held at Lane County Historical Museum, number WR60
Portrait of Catherine Entyre Christian

3 of 41 Daniel and Catherine Christian House
Lane County, Oregon
Photographer unknown
Date of photo unknown
Original held by Paul Fay Christian, Carroll County, lllinois
View of first frame house in Carroll County lllinois, built by Daniel Christian’s father c. 1840.

4 of 41 Daniel and Catherine Christian House
Lane County, Oregon
Photographer unknown
Date of photo: ¢ 1890
Original held at Lane County Historical Museum, number GN1800
View of east elevation of Christian House while still at original location.

5 of 41 Daniel and Catherine Christian House
Lane County, Oregon
Photographer unknown
Date of photo unknown. (Probably 1880-1890)
Original held at Lane County Historical Museum, number GN1801
Detail view of west side of rear one-story kitchen wing.

6 of 41 Daniel and Catherine Christian House
Lane County, Oregon
Photographer unknown
Date of photo: 1956
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Original held at Lane County Historical Museum, number GN1680
Front (north) elevation of Christian House taken from E. 12" Avenue looking south/southwest.

EXTERIOR PHOTOS (Current)

The following information is common to all current exterior photographs:

Daniel and Catherine Christian House

Lane County, Oregon

Photographer: Liz Carter

Date of Photos: April-June 2007

Digital files held by Liz Carter, Eugene, Oregon

Photographs printed on Epson paper with Epson PictureMate ink.

7 of 41
8 of 41
9O of 41
10 of 41
11 of 41
12 of 41
13 of 41
14 of 41
15 of 41
16 of 41
17 of 41
18 of 41
19 of 41

20 of 41

Christian House, front (north) elevation. Facing southeast.

Christian House, east side elevation. Facing west/northwest.

Christian House, south (rear) elevation, addition. Facing north.
Christian House, south (rear) elevation, kitchen wing. Facing northwest.
Christian House, south (rear) elevation. Facing north.

Christian House, west and south view. Facing northeast.

Christian House, west elevation partial. Facing northeast.

Christian House, west elevation. Facing south.

Christian House, east elevation detail.

Christian House, east elevation eave detail.

Christian House, northwest corner, foundation and siding treatment detail.
Christian House, west elevation, porch and entrance detail.

Christian House, west elevation, porch detail.

Christian House, west elevation, eave detail.
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21 of 41

Christian House, east elevation, window detail.

INTERIOR PHOTOS (Current)

The following information is common to all current interior photographs:

Daniel and Catherine Christian House

Lane County, Oregon

Photographer: Liz Carter

Date of Photos: July 2007

Digital files held by Liz Carter, Eugene, Oregon

Photographs printed on Epson paper with Epson PictureMate ink.

22 of 41
23 of 41

24 of 41

25 of 41

26 of 41
27 of 41
28 of 41
29 of 41
30 of 41
31 of 41
32 of 41
33 of 41

34 of 41

Christian House, living room. Facing east.
Christian House, living room. Facing west.

Christian House, view from living room through to back of house; second doorway is original
exterior wall. Facing south.

Christian House, view from kitchen to dining room; exposed post & beam indicate location
of original interior wall. Facing east.

Christian House, kitchen. Facing west.

Christian House, kitchen cabinets detail. Facing west.

Christian House, door on south wall of current kitchen to kitchen wing. Facing southwest.
Christian House, living room window detail. Facing east.

Christian House, interior door.

Christian House, interior trim detail.

Christian House, original exterior siding used to patch interior wall.

Christian House, entry with fixed window and front door. Facing north.

Christian House, entry staircase detail. Facing southwest.
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350f 41 Christian House, staircase. Facing east.

36 of 41  Christian House, upstairs hallway. Facing east.

37 of 41  Christian House, upstairs apartment Unit 2. Facing southeast

38 of 41 Christian House, upstairs apartment Unit 2. Facing southwest.

39 of 41 Christian House, upstairs apartment Unit 2, kitchen. Facing west.

40 of 41 Christian House, upstairs apartment Unit 2, kitchen. Facing southeast.

41 of 41  Christian House, upstairs apartment Unit 2, closet with last original sash. Facing west.



